
           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..    
 

  

 CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS              MMAAYYOORR 
  Richard Holm -Alt. Dep. Mayor Pro Tem    488-1776 Bryce Ward – 488-7314  

  Sharron Hunter-Mayor Pro Tem  488-4282                 

    Thomas McGhee             455-0010 

  Derrick Nelson             378-8207  

  Michelle Sikma -Dep. Mayor Pro Tem 378-5778 

  Preston Smith     488-8824   

          CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

                Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583   

 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag   
 

 National Anthem sung by NPMS   

 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

Proclamation 

Kayla Heindrichs 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 o 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG    

MMoonnddaayy,,  AApprriill  1155,,  22001133  
 

 

  

  

  

  



 

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 

 
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.    Old Business 

  None 

 

12.   New Business 

a. Cooperative agreement between the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the City of 

North Pole, Alaska for the provision of law enforcement services 

 

b. Ordinance 13-04, an ordinance amending Title 4, Chapter 4.08, Sales Tax 

 

c. Ordinance 13-05, and ordinance amending Title 4, Revenue and Finance, Chapter 

4.04, Fiscal Year, and introducing Section 4.04.030 General Fund Capital Project 

Fund, 4.04.040 General Fund Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund, and 

4.04.050 Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund 

 

d. Ordinance 13-06, an ordinance amending Title 2, Chapter 2.36 Pay, of the Personnel 

Code  

 

 

13.  Council Comments 

 

14.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 

impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this 

service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 

meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 

Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 

Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, April 1, 2013 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, April 1, 2013 to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Mr. Holm       

Ms. Hunter           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Nelson           

Ms. Sikma 

Mr. Smith         

Mayor Ward      

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Ward 

National Anthem sung by NPMS – Brandon Antesberger, Desteny Dawley, Taylor Hendricks, 

Mary Whipple 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Preston Smith 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of April 1, 2013 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, Nelson, McGhee, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the minutes of March 18, 2013 

 

Seconded by Mr. Holm 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

YES: 

NO: 

Absent: 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

Friday March 22
nd

 was the first ‘Muffins with the Mayor’ and it was a success.  We had about 15 

people attend and many stayed for some great conversation.  The public is encouraged to attend 

every third Friday of the month from 7am-9am in Council Chambers! 

The Legislature has shifted into overdrive and has begun to burn the midnight oil.  We have 

many things on the docket and hope our legislators are up to the task.  For more information 

please contact our Legislative office (LIO) at 907-452-4448 

Next Monday the 8
th

 at 6PM in the Council Chambers there will be a workshop on our revenues 

and taxes.  I am strongly requesting council members please attend.  Thank you to the council for 

a productive workshop last week.  

The 4
th

 of July Festivities planning will begin next month.  The meeting dates are as follows  

CHANGE (April 9
th)

, April 22
nd

, May 13
th

, May 28
th

, June 10
th

, June24th and July 2
nd

.  All 

meetings will be in the Council Chambers at 6PM.  Please come if you want to be involved.  We 

only have 7 meetings to plan this event.   

National Lemonade day is coming up on May 11
th

 2013.  The City of North Pole is going to 

issue one day permits to our young entrepreneurs free of charge for this wonderful event.  

Encourage your young people to participate.  For more info visit:  

(http://alaska.lemonadeday.org) 

Last Friday was the Military Banquet put on by the Fairbanks Chamber of Commerce.  North 

Pole was present and we hosted Sgt. Major Lewis and his wife.  Thank you to all of our service 

men and women. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://alaska.lemonadeday.org/


Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 Reminder – DEA national drug take back will be held April 22
nd

.  Old prescription drugs 

can be dropped off at the police station. 

 Just returned from Anchorage on the Incident Command training.  They are type 1 teams 

and come in and manage disasters in communities and bring order to chaos.  Both chiefs 

were able to tour the state EOC. 

 Both officers in the Academy are #1 and #2 and he is very proud of them.  They will be 

finished in about 4 weeks. 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

 None 

 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler 

Building Department 

 No new building permits issued since last Council meeting 

 Borough appears to be progressing to construction of library this season 

 

Public Works 

 Major roads like Santa Claus Lane, 5
th

, 8
th

, Old Richards Highway, St. Nicholas Drive are 

beginning to lose the worst of their ice 

 If warm temperatures continue will start hard pack removal later this week on City roads 

 Request for Bids for backhoe will be released April 3 and will close on April 29 

 Hope to make a recommendation at the May 6 Council meeting of a competitive bid 

 

Utility Department 

 Request for Bids for wireless communication connection between well house and water 

treatment plant will close next Tuesday and hope to recommended a contractor at April 15 

Council meeting 

 Plan to release the Request for Bids for the sewer lining project next week 

 Expect to close bidding first week of May and make a recommendation to Council on 

April 20
th

 meeting 

 Hope construction will begin in June 

 Contracted for an appraisal of the two parcels of State land adjacent to the waste water 

treatment plant 

 Hope to have appraisal results by May 20 Council meeting 

 First step in acquiring the land—need to know if the price is reasonable related to 

Utility’s long term needs 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

 Must pay market value 

 State will finance the land over 20 years if the City is interested in purchasing the land 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 Utility board is in a period of anticipation waiting for major State actions… 

 Governor’s initiative to fund liquefaction, trucking, storage and distribution 

 Regulatory Commission decision of Certificate of Need  

 

City Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

 None 

 

Borough Representative 

 None 

 

 

City Clerk  

 Alaska USA Insurance, the brokers for our medical insurance, will be here on Friday, 

April 12
th

 at 9:00 to a basic “self insurance” training session with Mayor Ward so that he 

can be better prepared for the health plan renewal coming up in June.   

 We received our foil imprints today with the 60
th

 Anniversary on them.  We also have a 

few pens imprinted with the 60
th

 Anniversary on them also. 

 Reminder that Mayor is having a Council Workshop on Monday, April 8, 2013 from 6:00 

– 8:00 p.m.  You will be receiving an Ordinance with the personnel changes tomorrow 

morning along with the agenda. 

 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
None 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 

Robert Bradley, 3940 Birch Lane North Pole, AK 

Mr. Bradley had concerns with the safety and use of ATV’s and snowmachines in the North Pole 

area.    He asked the council to limit the use of them on the city streets and highways.  He would 

like to see more patrolling in the area. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked if he was aware of state statute that regulates ATV’s.  He stated that council 

can make a decision to make the law more stringent in the city limits. 

 

Dawn Murphy, FCVB 

Packets with the 2012 audit were distributed to council members and Ms. Murphy stated that 

there were no material weaknesses or deficiencies.   Also included in the packet were the top 10 

travel destinations of which Fairbanks is named at the #2 destination to visit in the United States 

in 2013 by Lonely Planet, the leading travel guidebook publisher and website.  FCVB will hold 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

their annual banquet on April 20, 2013 at the Princess Lodge and council members should be 

receiving their invitations in the mail shortly. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

DISPUTE UTILITY BILL BY ANTHONY ETTARI IN THE AMOUNT OF $1231.95 

Mr. Butler came forward and gave an explanation of the protocol when a leak is detected at a 

residence.  After a meter reading is done, if there is a leak, Ms. Fogarty will send out a notice to 

the owner to inform them of the problem.  Mr. Bottles, the property manager, was reached and 

was informed that the leak needed to be corrected.  The utility department, upon arriving at the 

residence, did a profile of how much water was leaking.  Mr. Bottles corrected the problem when 

notified of the situation.  The utility department did not see any evidence of a sink hole, mud, or 

water/ice on the property where 95,000 gallons of water went through the meter.   

 

Mr. Smith asked if there was a circulation pump. 

 

Mr. Butler said there was no heat on in the house for some time according to the manager and 

circulation pumps are not required. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked where 400 gallons of water per hour would go. 

 

Mr. Butler said that if a tap was open or a toilet was running or a pipe was broken, that 400 

gallons per minute could go through and would probably freeze under the trailer.  Mr. Hollis did 

not provide any evidence, pictures, etc. to prove that the water did not go down the drain. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked the timeframe of this event. 

 

Mayor Ward said that Ms. Fogarty had talked with him at 11:00 a.m. and the water was shut off 

at 7:00 p.m.  It was not until later that Mr. Hollis came in and said that there was a leak. 

 

Mr. Holm asked if we normally look for that evidence or was it the homeowners responsibility. 

 

Mr. Butler said that the Utility Department wasn’t going in to look for a leak and didn’t go in to 

inspect but to look at the meter.  The responsibility falls to the homeowner to bring evidence to 

council in order to ask forgiveness for the utility bill.   

 

Mr. Holm asked if we can shut the water off. 

 

Mr. Butler said that we can not shut the water off and that the owner needs to shut it off under 

the home.  If there is a serious situation the utility department will call the police and enter the 

home to shut the water off if the homeowner can not be reached or is out of town.  Mr. Butler 

stated that there was no proof provided by the owner that the pipes had been fixed and that the 

ground would be frozen under the trailer and therefore would be ice on the ground. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

 

Hollis Bottles, 912 23
rd

 Ave, Fairbanks, AK 

Mr. Bottles stated that he is the property manager of the residence.  He said that 95,000 gallons 

of water leaked under the trailer and that it did not go into the City sewer system and went into a 

hole under the trailer.  He would like to get some kind of relief from this $3,200 bill. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked where the leak was. 

 

Mr. Bottles stated that the break was in the main line and that the meter was broken due to being 

frozen. 

 

Mr. Holm asked if there was some way for the tenant to get pictures of the damage or some kind 

of proof. 

 

Mr. Bottles said that he told the tenant to shovel dirt under the trailer and into the hole. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if the owner was able to do a payment plan for this bill. 

 

Mr. Bottles said the average bill is 4000-5000 gallons of water per month.  He said there is no 

way 95,000 gallons of water could run through there. 

 

Ms. Sikma asked if he filled the hole in or if there was someone who could go in and check it 

out.   

 

Mr. Bottles said that if the City wanted to send someone underneath the trailer that would be fine 

but he wasn’t going under there. 

 

Ms. Sikma asked how the pipe was repaired if the tenant couldn’t get in there. 

 

Mr. Bottles said the tenant did get under there and that it was a plastic pipe that was broken and 

has been fixed since then. 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Deny financial assistance to Mr. Ettari in the amount of $1,231.95 

for the sewer portion of his utility bill 

 

Seconded by Mr. Smith 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said that the tenant didn’t prove that 95,000 gallons of water didn’t go  through the 

meter. 

 

Ms. Hunter said that there is a cost to the water and that when the council forgives a bill, the rest 

of the residents have to pay for that water.  She said that an extended payment plan may be in 

order. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

 

Mr. Smith said that he would also like to see a payment plan for the resident do it would be 

easier for them to pay it back to the City. 

 

Mr. Holm said that the City’s policy is that when there is no proof offered or any willingness to 

take any pictures, and that 95,000 gallons would have been a lot of water, that he is in favor of 

the motion. 

 

Mr. Nelson said that without any proof of any negligence on the owners part that we couldn’t 

grant relief. 

 

Ms. Sikma said she regrets his situation but without proof that she agrees with the rest of the 

council. 

 

Mr. McGhee said he has a Jacuzzi that holds 475 gallons of water and he can fill it within 3 

hours off of the tap in his bathroom.  It’s not uncommon to use that much water. 

 

Mr. Ward said it was Mr. Bottles responsibly to come forward with evidence that the water idn’t 

go down the drain.  By code, the owner must provide proof or pay the cost of the water.  If he 

can come back with roof then the city may be able to forgive a portion of it . It is a cost to our 

utility rate payers.   

 

PASSED 

YES: 7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, Nelson, McGhee, Ward 

NO: 0 

Absent: 0 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss City of North Pole vs 

Heather Burns on sales tax issues. 

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

Mayor Ward brought the meeting back to order at 8:50 p.m. 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to direct the Mayor to file with a collection agency and hold the sales 

tax debt until the date of statute of limitations. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Holm 

 

PASSED 

YES: 7 – Hunter, Sikma, Holm, Smith, Nelson, McGhee, Ward 

NO: 0 

Absent: 0 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

April 1, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
City of North Pole 

Minutes of  April 1, 2013 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Mr. Holm – Good Evening. 

 

Mr. Smith – Hopes everyone had a good Easter and enjoy the rest of the week. 

 

Mr. Nelson – Happy April Fool’s Day! 

 

Mr. McGhee – thanked the Bradley’s for coming in and Phil Zastrow for attending.  He would 

like to know why the Fire Dept was here tonight.  Just a reminder to council, that they have the 

power to help the police to enforce the ATV’s in the City.  He asked everyone to be responsible 

with ATV’s.  Glad sodium chloride went down.  Be safe. 

 

Ms. Hunter – thanked NPMS for doing the National Anthem.  She also thanked Mr. Bradley 

and is concerned about the 4 wheelers and young children with parents that don’t have enough 

safety awareness to be doing that.  She would hate to have the city  face a death due to ATV’s in 

the city.  She thanked Mr. McGhee for bringing this to our attention and other safety issues. 

 

Ms. Sikma – no comment 

 

Mayor Ward – thanked NPMS for singing the anthem and to let him know.  He is happy about 

the public involvement and all the input at the council workshop and their efforts. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 8: 56 p.m.  

 

Seconded by Ms. Sikma 

 

The regular meeting of April 1, 2013 adjourned at 8:56 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, April 15, 2013. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

             

                          

 

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

















Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

1 

 

 1 

          2 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 3 

 4 

Ordinance 13-04 5 

 6 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4 CHAPTER 4.08, SALES TAX 7 

 8 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing 9 

requirement; and 10 

 11 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to make changes to the Sales Tax Code of 12 

the North Pole Municipal Code to bring it into compliance with existing laws. 13 

 14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North 15 

Pole: 16 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall codified. 17 

 18 

 Section 2.  Title 4, Chapter 4.08 of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances 19 

is as follows: 20 

 21 

Chapter 4.08 22 

SALES TAX 23 

Sections: 24 

4.08.005 Purpose and intent. 25 

4.08.010 Definitions. 26 

4.08.015 Business licenses required. 27 

4.08.020 Imposition of rate. 28 

4.08.030 Obligations of seller. 29 

4.08.040 Taxed transactions. 30 

4.08.045 Sales of bingo, lotteries and pull-tabs. 31 

4.08.050 Exemptions. 32 

4.08.055 Senior/disabled sales tax refund. 33 

4.08.060 Promulgation of forms. 34 

4.08.070 Confidentiality of sales tax returns. 35 

4.08.080 Recordkeeping. 36 

4.08.090 Submittal of forms and remittance. 37 

4.08.100 Delinquency, fees, penalties, interest and application of payment. 38 

4.08.105 Estimated taxes. 39 

4.08.110 Exemptions, exceptions and refunds. 40 

4.08.120 Lien for tax, interest and penalties. 41 

4.08.130 Criminal liability. 42 

4.08.140 Sale of business, final tax returns, liability of purchaser. 43 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.005
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.015
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.045
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.055
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.105
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.140


Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

2 

 

4.08.150 No cause of Action Against the City. 44 

4.08.160 Severability. 45 

4.08.005 Purpose and intent. 46 

The purpose and intent of the tax imposed under this chapter is to raise revenues. The 47 

scope of the tax levied shall be broadly interpreted and exemptions shall be allowed only 48 

when the rental, sales or service clearly fall within an exemption defined in this chapter. 49 

(Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 50 

4.08.010 Definitions. 51 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings 52 

respectfully ascribed to them by this section: 53 

"Buyer, consumer or person" means, without limiting the scope thereof, every individual, 54 

assignee, association, business trust, club, company, corporation, estate trust, firm, joint 55 

venture, partnership, co-partnership, receiver, society, trustee in bankruptcy, or any group 56 

or combination acting as a unit whether mutual, cooperative, fraternal, nonprofit, or 57 

otherwise who is a purchaser or renter of tangible or intangible goods or services. 58 

"Mayor" means chief administrative official of the city or the mayor’s designee. 59 

"Property" means any tangible personal or real possession. 60 

"Rent" means the conditional use of personal or real property by a consumer for 61 

consideration. 62 

"Retail sale" means the transfer of any kind of goods or services to consumers, for 63 

consideration, regardless of quantity or price. 64 

"Sale" means the exchange of any real or personal property, or of any goods or services 65 

for consideration including barter, installment credit, conditional sales, and rental 66 

transactions for any purpose other than resale in the regular course of business. 67 

"Sale for resale (wholesale)" means the act of selling tangible personal or real property to 68 

a buyer for reselling in its original form for consideration. 69 

"Sales price" means the amount of consideration paid by the buyer in terms of monetary 70 

value. The exchange or sale price of real estate is based on the current fair market value. 71 

"Sales tax administrator" means the accounts receivable clerk or whomever performs the 72 

daily operations of administering the sales tax program for the city. 73 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.150
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole04/NorthPole0408.html#4.08.160


Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

3 

 

"Seller" means all work done or duties performed, provided, or furnished for others for 74 

compensation whether in conjunction with the sale of goods or not, but does not include 75 

services rendered by an employee to an employer. 76 

"Services" means all work done or duties performed, provided or furnished for others for 77 

compensation whether in conjunction with the sale of goods or not, but does not include 78 

services rendered by an employee to an employer. 79 

"Transaction made within the city" means the buyer takes possession of the purchased, 80 

rented, or leased property or service provided within the corporate limits of the city. (Ord. 81 

99-29 §2(part), 1999) 82 

4.08.015 Business licenses required. 83 

All sellers shall secure a city business license as required in Section 5.02.020 and a state 84 

of Alaska business license. 85 

A. The city business license must be prominently displayed at the place of business of 86 

every seller. Any seller who has no regular place of business shall display such license on 87 

request. 88 

B. Before issuing a business license to a seller, the city may require the applicant to post 89 

a bond, furnish a statement of net worth, or furnish additional security to insure the full 90 

and prompt payment of taxes to be collected under this chapter. 91 

C. The business license of any seller is automatically suspended when such seller fails to 92 

pay delinquent taxes, penalty and interest within thirty days after notice of delinquency is 93 

given or mailed. It is unlawful for a seller to engage in sales without a current city 94 

business license or to engage in sales when such license is suspended. 95 

D. Each seller who obtains or should obtain a city business license in accordance with 96 

Section 5.02.020 of the city code consents to the inspection of their federal or state 97 

business tax returns in order to facilitate the accomplishment of the provisions and 98 

objectives of this chapter. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 99 

4.08.020 Imposition of rate. 100 

There is levied a tax equal to four five (5%) percent of the selling price upon buyers of all 101 

retail sales, and rentals made, and all services performed within the corporate limits of the 102 

City, unless specifically exempted in this chapter or a different tax rate is specifically set 103 

forth in this chapter. 104 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole05/NorthPole0502.html#5.02.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole05/NorthPole0502.html#5.02.020


Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

4 

 

A. There is hereby levied an alcoholic beverage tax on the retail sale of alcoholic 105 

beverages equal to five eight percent times the selling price of all sales made within the 106 

City of North Pole. 107 

B. 1. There is hereby levied an excise tax on the distribution of tobacco products brought 108 

into the City limits measured at the rate of eight percent times the wholesale price of such 109 

tobacco products. 110 

2. It is the intent and purpose of this chapter to provide for the collection of the 111 

excise tax from the person who brings, or causes to be brought, tobacco products 112 

into the City limits from outside the City limits for sale; or 113 

a. A person brings, or causes to be brought, tobacco products into the City 114 

limits from outside the City limits for sale; or 115 

b. A person ships or transports cigarettes or tobacco products to a retailer in 116 

the City limits for sale by a retailer. 117 

C. The maximum tax on any single transaction shall be eight ten ($10) dollars except on 118 

the retail sale of alcoholic beverages, tobacco products, and the hotel-motel room tax, all 119 

of which shall not have any maximum tax. 120 

D. On all sales except the sale of alcohol, tobacco products and hotel-motel rooms the 121 

seller shall add the tax imposed by this section to the sale price in accordance with the 122 

following schedule: 123 

Sales Tax 

Under $0.24 $0.01    0.02 

$0.25 through $0.50 0.02     0.03 

$0.51 through $0.75 0.03     0.04 

$0.76 through $1.00 0.04     0.05 

$1.01 through $1.25 0.05     0.07 

$1.26 through $1.50 0.06     0.08 

$1.51 through $1.75  0.07     0.09 

$1.76 through $2.00  0.08     0.10 

$2.01 through $2.25  0.09     0.12 

$2.26 through $2.50  0.10     0.13 

$2.51 through $2.75  0.11     0.14 

$2.76 through $3.00  0.12     0.15 

$3.00 and over, continue on the same scale up to the maximum. 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

5 

 

E. Coin-operated machines shall remit four five (5%) percent of the gross receipts derived 124 

from sales using the following formula: 125 

Receipts divided by 1.04  1.05= Sales 126 

Receipts minus Sales = Sales tax due 127 

(Ord 13-04 §2, 2013: Ord. 10-14 §2, 2011: Ord. 09-01a §2, 2009: Ord. 09-01 §2, 2009: 128 

Ord. 06-08 (part), 2006; Ord. 04-14 §2 (part), 2004: Ord. 00-14 §2(part), 2000: Ord. 00-2 129 

§2(part), 2000: Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 130 

4.08.030 Obligations of seller. 131 

It is the obligation of the seller making taxable sales to collect all taxes imposed by this 132 

chapter. All taxes shall be due and payable from the buyer to the seller at the time the 133 

transaction takes place. The seller shall hold collected taxes in trust for the benefit of the 134 

city. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 135 

4.08.040 Taxed transactions. 136 

Taxed transactions include all sales, retail sales, sales for resale, rentals, and services 137 

performed within the corporate limits of the city, unless specifically exempted by this 138 

chapter, the laws of Alaska, or by the Constitution of the United States. (Ord. 99-29 139 

§2(part), 1999) 140 

4.08.045 Sales of bingo, lotteries and pull-tabs. 141 

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this chapter the sales of bingo, lotteries, and 142 

pull-tabs and like games of chance by any operator or any permittee are subject to sales 143 

tax on the total adjusted gross income as defined by AS 05.15. Each operator and 144 

permittee must along with their sales return and remittance file a report on their activity 145 

in the city during that filing period including the value of prizes awarded and other 146 

information as may be required by the city. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 147 

4.08.050 Exemptions. 148 

A. The following classes of sales, rentals, and services are exempt from the tax imposed 149 

by this chapter: 150 

1. Causal and isolated sales not exceeding one thousand dollars per calendar year 151 

and not requiring the seller to hold a current city or state business license; 152 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

6 

 

2. Sales, services, rentals, and transactions which the municipality is prohibited 153 

from taxing under the Constitution of the United States or the state of Alaska, 154 

including but not limited to: 155 

a. Sales of insurance bonds of guaranty, fidelity, and the commissions 156 

thereon, 157 

b. Sales to federally charted credit unions, 158 

c. Sales of goods made with food coupons, food stamps, or other type of 159 

certificate issued under 7 USC 2011-2025 (Food Stamp Act), or made with 160 

food coupons, food vouchers, or other type of certificate issued under 42 161 

USC 1786 (Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and 162 

Children); 163 

3. Sales, rentals, or services provided to the United States, to the state of Alaska, 164 

and any public corporation or political subdivision thereof; 165 

4. Sales, rentals, or services provided to any volunteer ambulance, fire, or law 166 

enforcement organization providing service to the public and to public 167 

international organizations designated by the president of the United States; 168 

5. Sales of professional medical services performed by a person, clinic, or 169 

hospital licensed and certified under the state of Alaska: 170 

a. The preparation of controlled substances prescribed and supplied by a 171 

state licensed and certified medical professional, 172 

b. Counseling services provided by state licensed and certified psychologists 173 

or psychological associates, clinical social workers, alcohol and drug 174 

counselors, or marital and family therapists, 175 

c. Assisted living services provided in accordance with state regulations, 176 

and licensed by such, 177 

d. Sales and rentals of hearing aids, crutches, wheelchairs, and other 178 

personal property specifically manufactured for a patient; 179 

6. Sales of newspapers or other periodicals by carrier made directly to consumers 180 

where the carrier is responsible for the collection of sales revenue; 181 

7. Goods and services purchased through mail order catalogs or the Internet; 182 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

7 

 

8. Membership dues, fees, or assessments paid to clubs, labor unions, fraternal 183 

organizations, and other nonprofit organizations that have obtained exemption 184 

certificate 501(c) from the Internal Revenue Service; 185 

9. Sales, services, and rentals to a buyer, or made by a seller, for functions 186 

organized and administered solely by an organization holding a current 501(c)(3) 187 

or 501 (c)(4) exemption ruling or equivalent from the Internal Revenue Service 188 

which has a physical or mailing address within city limits and a resolution or 189 

letter from the board, naming up to a maximum of six individuals, authorized to 190 

make purchases on behalf of the organization. This exemption does not apply to 191 

the sale of pull-tab games; 192 

10. Sales of school admission tickets, goods, services, and rentals for school 193 

entertainment, athletic activities, and all other activities conducted by school 194 

sanctioned groups; 195 

11. Sales of food and beverages in public or private school and college cafeterias 196 

or lunchrooms which are not operated for profit; 197 

12. Rentals of real property where the term of tenancy is monthly or longer; 198 

13. Sales, rentals, or leases/purchase agreements of automobiles by a dealer made 199 

outside city limits; 200 

14. Sales for resale (wholesale) of tangible personal or real property to a buyer 201 

for reselling in its original form; 202 

15. The commission earned on real estate sales; 203 

16. Air, train, bus and boat fares, lodging, adventure and similar and related 204 

services and the commission earned by licensed agents in the sale thereof. (Ord. 205 

99-29 §2(part), 1999) 206 

17. Sales of food and merchandise in the farmer’s market. City business licenses 207 

are required by vendors. (Ord. 03-01 §2 (part), 2003) 208 

18. Sales of professional services to include but not limited to architectural, 209 

carpentry, electrical, engineering, financial, general contractor, landscaping, 210 

legal, plumbing, snow removal, etc. City business licenses are required; the sale 211 

of goods and products associated with the service is not exempt unless previously 212 

described in this chapter. 213 

B. Sales of heating fuel are exempt from the tax imposed by this chapter for a period of 214 

one year beginning August 5, 2008. 215 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

8 

 

(Ord. 08-16 §(part), 2008) 216 

4.08.055 Senior/disabled sales tax refund. 217 

Senior or disabled citizens who are residents of the city shall receive refunds from the 218 

sales tax imposed by the city in the amount not to exceed eighty dollars per annum. Any 219 

eligible applicant with a delinquent account with the City of North Pole shall have their 220 

refund applied to delinquent account. Applicants must meet the following requirements: 221 

A. The citizen is a resident of the city at least sixty-five years of age; or 222 

B. The citizen is a resident of the city and is one hundred percent disabled by virtue of the 223 

disability standards set by the Social Security Act of the United States. 224 

In addition to meeting any of the requirements of this subsection, citizens must apply for 225 

the refund beginning January 1st and ending March 31st of the year refund is sought. 226 

(Ord. 00-10 §2, 2000; Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999), (Ord.04-15 §2,(part),2004) 227 

4.08.060 Promulgation of forms. 228 

When necessary or appropriate and upon approval by the mayor, the sales tax 229 

administrator shall revise or implement the use of forms for the purpose of efficiency 230 

within administration. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 231 

4.08.070 Confidentiality of sales tax returns. 232 

Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all documentation required to be filed shall 233 

be kept confidential and is not subject to public inspection. Persons supplying the 234 

information may be granted access to their records if requested in writing and approved 235 

by the sales tax administrator. 236 

A. The following information may be made available to the public: The name and 237 

business address of current business license holders; 238 

B. The sales tax administrator will provide monthly to the city council the names of 239 

sellers delinquent in remitting sales taxes and the amount thereof. Information may also 240 

be made available to the public in the form of statistical reports if the identity of 241 

particular sellers is not revealed or made evident by the reports. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 242 

1999) 243 

 244 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

9 

 

4.08.080 Recordkeeping. 245 

It shall be the duty of every seller engaged in business in the city to keep and preserve, 246 

for three years, suitable records of all sales, services, and rentals transacted by liability 247 

hereunder. 248 

A. For the purpose of ascertaining the correctness of a return, or for the purpose of 249 

determining the amount of tax collected or which should have been collected by any 250 

person, the mayor or his designee may conduct random audits by examining any relevant 251 

documentation including correspondence, invoices, and receipts; hold investigations and 252 

hearings concerning any matter covered by this chapter; and may require the attendance 253 

of such person, officer, or employee of such person. 254 

B. The mayor and the mayor’s duly authorized agent shall have the power to administer 255 

oaths to such persons. The mayor, with the approval of the city council, shall issue all 256 

formal subpoenas to compel attendance or to require production of relevant books, 257 

papers, records of memoranda. 258 

C. Any competent person may serve all subpoenas or other court orders issued under the 259 

terms of this chapter. Witness fees for attendance and trial shall be the same as the fees of 260 

witnesses before the superior court; such fees shall be paid when the witness is excused 261 

from further attendance. When a witness is subpoenaed at the instance of any party to any 262 

such proceedings, the mayor may require the cost of service of the subpoena and the fee 263 

of the witness be borne by the party at whose instance the witness is summoned. In such 264 

case, the mayor at his discretion may require a deposit to cover the cost of such service 265 

and witness fee. A subpoena issued as aforesaid shall be served in the same manner as a 266 

subpoena issued out of a court of record. 267 

D. The superior court upon application of the mayor, is empowered to compel obedience 268 

to such subpoena; the attendance of witnesses; the production of relevant books, papers, 269 

records or memoranda; and the giving of testimony before the mayor, or any of the 270 

mayor’s duly authorized agents in the manner and extent as witnesses may be compelled 271 

to obey the subpoenas and orders of the court. 272 

E. The mayor, or any party in an investigation or hearing before the mayor, may cause 273 

the deposition of witnesses residing within or without the state to be taken in the manner 274 

prescribed by law for like depositions in civil actions in courts of this state. (Ord. 99-29 275 

§2(part), 1999) 276 

4.08.090 Submittal of forms and remittance. 277 

The city shall provide sales tax return forms to sellers. Sellers making a taxable sale in 278 

any month shall transmit the tax collected no later than the last day of the following 279 

month in which tax was collected along with a completed return. Returns and taxes 280 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

10 

 

remitted must be received by the city administrative offices no later than five p.m. on the 281 

due date. (Ord. 03-01 §2 (part),2003) 282 

A.The sales tax forms furnished by the city shall have spaces setting forth the amount 283 

received from the following: 284 

1. All sales, services, or rentals made within city limits; 285 

2. The amount received from nontaxable sales, services, and rentals; 286 

3. The amount of credit card service fees paid on credit card sales within the city; 287 

4. The amount of taxable sales, services, and rentals; 288 

5. The amount of sales tax owed; 289 

6. The amount of penalties owed; 290 

7. The total amount of sales tax and penalties owed to the city; 291 

8. Such other information and supporting documentation as may be required. 292 

B. A seller who, for one year, has transmitted taxes and filed returns as required by this 293 

chapter may file with the sales tax administrator a written request to transmit taxes and 294 

file returns quarterly. The sales tax administrator shall evaluate the seller’s compliance 295 

with this chapter, and make a recommendation to the city council to approve or deny the 296 

seller’s petition. If the city council approves the petition, the seller shall file returns and 297 

transmit the taxes imposed by this chapter no later than the last day of the month 298 

following the quarter the taxes were collected. Upon approval of the council, quarterly 299 

filing will revert to monthly filing if reports are not transmitted on time. (Ord. 99-29 300 

§2(part), 1999)(Ord. 03-01 §2 (part),2003) 301 

C. Payment in lieu of taxes. The sales tax administrator shall evaluate the seller’s 302 

compliance with this chapter, and make a recommendation to the city council to approve 303 

or deny the seller’s compliance agreement to submit lump sum annual tax payment to 304 

reduce administrative burden on collectors of the tax and the city as well when nominal 305 

amounts of sales tax is estimated to be collected in a calendar year. The compliance 306 

agreement shall require the seller to submit to the sales tax administrator a year end 307 

financial summary for review. If it is later determined that the payment in lieu of taxes is 308 

significantly less than what would have been collected and submitted monthly, the 309 

collector shall remit the higher amount and any late and or penalty fees from under 310 

reporting of sales tax. 311 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

11 

 

4.08.100 Delinquency, fees, penalties, interest and application of payment. 312 

Taxes due but not paid will be considered delinquent and will be subject to all fees, 313 

interest, and penalties under this chapter, and may be recovered by the city with an action 314 

at law against the buyer and/or seller. The sales tax return shall be prima facie proof of 315 

taxes collected by not transmitted. 316 

A. Application of Fees and Penalties. 317 

1. Complete sales tax returns and full remittance delinquent less than thirty days 318 

shall be charged a late fee of twenty-five dollars or up to the maximum interest 319 

rate allowed to by law, whichever is greater, in addition to the total amount due. 320 

Sellers filing incomplete sales tax returns will incur an additional penalty of 321 

fifteen dollars. (Ord 03-01 §2 (part) 2003) 322 

2. Complete sales tax returns and full remittance thirty to sixty days past due will 323 

incur a late fee of fifty dollars or up to the maximum interest rate allowed to by 324 

law, whichever is greater, in addition to the total amount due. Sellers filing 325 

incomplete sales tax returns will incur an additional penalty of fifteen dollars. 326 

(Ord.03-01 §2 (part) 2003) 327 

3. Sales tax returns and full remittance sixty-one days past due will incur a 328 

reoccurring monthly fee of fifty dollars in addition to all previous fees, interest, 329 

and penalties. Sellers failing to file complete returns and full remittance will be 330 

subject to revocation of their business license, and a lien against the seller’s 331 

property or a class A misdemeanor, upon council approval. (Ord.03-01 §2 (part), 332 

2003) 333 

B. Application of Interest. Interest at the rate of fifteen percent per year, and applied 334 

monthly, shall accrue on all delinquent taxes, fees and fines starting from the due date 335 

until paid in full. 336 

C. Application of Payments. All tax related payments made to the city shall first apply to 337 

the payment of fees, interest, and penalties, then to the payment of the principal of the tax 338 

which is delinquent, and then to the payment of current taxes. All other payments 339 

received over the amount owed for taxes, fees, interest, and penalties will then apply to 340 

any other fees incurred by the seller. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 341 

D. Business licenses will be automatically revoked, and businesses will be served with a 342 

cease and desist order by a law enforcement officer empowered by the City of North Pole 343 

when sales tax returns are ninety days delinquent. A new business license will be issued 344 

upon full payment of all sales tax, penalties and fees. (Ord. 01-10 §2 (part), 2001) 345 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

12 

 

E. Businesses who have chronic late sales tax returns, defined as sales tax returns that are 346 

sixty (60) days delinquent twice in a calendar year, will have their business license 347 

revoked and served with a cease and desist order by a law enforcement officer 348 

empowered by the City of North Pole. A new business license will be issued upon full 349 

payment of all sales tax, penalties and fees. (Ord. 01-10 §2 (part), 2001) 350 

F. Businesses who have habitually late sales tax returns, defined as sales tax returns that 351 

are sixty (60) days delinquent three times in a calendar year, will have their business 352 

license revoked and served with a cease and desist order by a law enforcement officer 353 

empowered by the City of North Pole. Criminal theft charges will be filed against the 354 

business owners and/or other responsible parties pursuant to the applicable North Pole 355 

ordinances or Alaska statutes. (Ord. 01-10 §2 (part), 2001) 356 

G. The business owner shall have two (2) business days from the date of service of the 357 

cease and desist order/revocation of the business owner’s license to do business in the 358 

City of North Pole. This request for an administrative hearing shall set forth all grounds 359 

relied upon by the business owner to contest the cease and desist order/revocation order. 360 

Any grounds not set forth in the request for hearing shall be considered waived. The 361 

hearing shall take place before the Mayor of the City of North Pole as soon as is 362 

practicable. The hearing shall be conducted and a decision rendered before the business 363 

license shall be considered revoked.  364 

The Mayor of the City of North Pole may rule upon the hearing request verbally at the 365 

conclusion of the hearing or in writing, at the Mayor’s discretion. 366 

The business owner shall have ten days from verbal or written notice of the Mayor of the 367 

City of North Pole’s decision in which to appeal any adverse decision to the Superior 368 

Court. The filing of such an appeal shall not stay the business license revocation. 369 

All cease and desist orders shall notify the business owner of the hearing rights and 370 

procedures set forth herein. (Ord. 01-10, §2 (part), 2001) 371 

4.08.105 Estimated taxes. 372 

The City reserves the right to estimate sales tax due when unable to ascertain the tax by a 373 

seller for any reason. The City may make an estimate of the tax due based on any 374 

evidence in its possession. Notice of the estimated taxes due shall be furnished to the 375 

seller and shall become final for the purpose of determining liability of the seller to the 376 

City in thirty days, unless the seller files an accurate and complete return. (Ord. 99-29 377 

§2(part), 1999) 378 

 379 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

13 

 

4.08.110 Exemptions, exceptions and refunds. 380 

Every sale, service, or rental made within the City, unless explicitly exempted by this 381 

chapter or a subsequent ordinance, shall be presumed to be subject to the tax imposed 382 

hereunder in any action to enforce the provisions of this chapter. It is the policy of the 383 

City that taxes, interest, and penalties shall be promptly collected without offset, 384 

compromise or time extensions for payment. 385 

A. A buyer or seller who claims a sale is exempt from taxation shall pay the tax as 386 

required by this chapter. Within thirty days of the sale the buyer or seller may file a claim 387 

in writing, including documentation substantiating the claim, with the Sales Tax 388 

Administrator briefly describing the basis of the claim and the relief sought. 389 

B. No sales tax refund request may be made/refunded unless the sales tax was paid under 390 

protest and stating the good faith reason(s) therefor. 391 

C. A seller may within sixty days of filing a completed sales tax return submit an 392 

amended return, and request in writing a refund or credit to their account. 393 

D. The Sales Tax Administrator shall investigate claims and shall present the claims, 394 

findings, and recommendations to the City Council for action at the next regular Council 395 

meeting. If the City Council determines there is clear and convincing evidence to 396 

establish a refund or credit of taxes paid, the Mayor or his designee shall ensure the 397 

refund or credit is issued no later than thirty days after determination has been made. The 398 

City shall not be held liable for any payment of interest on the tax payment from the date 399 

paid until a refund is made or credit applied. (Ord. 11-07 §2, 2011: Ord. 10-13 §2, 2011: 400 

Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 401 

4.08.120 Lien for tax, interest and penalties. 402 

Delinquent taxes, fines, administrative fees, and interest imposed by this chapter shall 403 

constitute a primary lien in favor of the city upon the seller’s property. 404 

A. The lien may be levied at time of delinquency and continues until the liability for all 405 

delinquent amounts are satisfied. Such lien shall be reviewed periodically and may be 406 

adjusted to reflect actual outstanding balances. 407 

B. Sales tax liens on property shall be enforced by foreclosure conducted as provided by 408 

law for enforcement of judgment liens. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 409 

C. Accounts may be assigned to a collection agency.(Ord.08-06 §2(part),2008) 410 

 411 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

14 

 

4.08.130 Criminal liability. 412 

Any person, firm, co-partnership, corporation, or director or agent of the aforementioned 413 

violating any of the provisions of this chapter or failing or refusing to comply with a 414 

lawful request or demand of the Mayor or Sales Tax Administrator authorized under this 415 

chapter is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 416 

4.08.140 Sale of business, final tax returns, liability of purchaser. 417 

A. If any seller sells, assigns, transfers, conveys, leases, forfeits, or abandons their 418 

business to another person, the seller shall surrender their business license to the City for 419 

cancellation. 420 

B. The seller shall make a final sales tax return with payment in full no later than ten days 421 

after relinquishment of the business showing that all obligations imposed by this chapter 422 

have been paid. 423 

C. The purchaser, assignee, transferee, lessee, successor, creditor, or secured party is 424 

required to file a new application for a new City business license, and shall provide proof 425 

of a State of Alaska business license. 426 

D. The purchaser, assignee, transferee, lessee, successor, creditor, or secured party shall 427 

withhold from the purchase money the sales tax, interest, and penalties owed by the 428 

seller. 429 

The purchaser, assignee, transferee, lessee, successor, creditor, or secured party shall be 430 

held personally liable for the payment of the taxes, interest, and penalties accruing on the 431 

unpaid balance by the former owners, operators, or assigns. (Ord. 99-29 §2(part), 1999) 432 

4.08.150 No cause of Action Against the City. 433 

The provisions of this section are enacted for the sole purpose of providing guidance to 434 

the City of North Pole administration for uniform collection procedures. Any failure on 435 

the part of the City of North Pole to follow the provisions of the section shall not: 436 

1. Waive any rights of the City of North Pole; 437 

2. Give rise to any cause of action on behalf of the seller or taxpayer against the 438 

City of North Pole. 439 

4.08.160 Severability. 440 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is held to 441 

be unconstitutional or in violation of law, then that holding shall not affect the validity of 442 

the remainder of this chapter. 443 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Approved:  April 15, 2013 

15 

 

 444 

 445 

            Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective July 1, 2013. 446 

 447 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 448 

Council this 15th day of April, 2013. 449 

 450 

 451 

 452 

______________________________ 453 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 454 

 455 

 456 

 457 

 458 

ATTEST: 459 

 460 

 461 

____________________________________ 462 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 463 

North Pole City Clerk 464 

 465 

 466 

 467 

 468 

PASSED/FAILED 469 

YES: 470 

NO: 471 

ABSENT: 472 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  April 15, 2013 

1 

 

 1 

          2 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 3 

 4 

ORDINANCE 13-05 5 

 6 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4 – REVENUE AND FINANCE, 7 

CHAPTER 4.04, FISCAL YEAR, AND INTRODUCING SECTION 4.04.030 8 

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROJECT FUND, 4.04.040 GENERAL FUND 9 

VEHICLE AND HEAVY EQUIPMENT FLEET FUND, AND 4.04.050 UTILITY 10 

DEPARTMENT VEHICLE AND HEAVY EQUIPMENT FLEET FUND 11 

 12 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing 13 

requirement; and 14 

 15 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to make changes to the North Pole Municipal 16 

Code to allow the City to secure funds for capital projects and vehicle replacement.  17 

 18 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North 19 

Pole: 20 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall codified. 21 

 22 

 Section 2.  Title 4, Chapter 4.04 of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances 23 

is amended as follows: 24 

 25 

Chapter 4.04 26 

Fiscal Year 27 

Sections: 28 

 4.04.010  Fiscal year designated 29 

 4.04.020  Budget process 30 

 4.04.030  General Fund Capital Projects Fund 31 

 4.04.040  General Fund Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund 32 

 4.04.050  Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund 33 

4.04.010 Fiscal year designated. 34 

The fiscal year of the city shall begin on January 1st of each year and end on December 35 

31st of that year. (Ord. 82 6 §1, 1982) 36 

4.04.020 Budget process.  37 

The calendar year budget process shall begin January 1, 1983. (Ord. 82 6 §2, 1982) 38 

 39 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  April 15, 2013 

2 

 

4.04.030 General Fund Capital project fund. 40 

(a) A Capital Projects Fund is hereby created to receive funds designated for capital 41 

use by budget designation and any other funds the city council may appropriate 42 

for capital projects.  43 

(b) All funds appropriated to the Capital Projects Fund shall remain in the Capital 44 

Projects Fund only to be expended on capital projects as approved by the City 45 

Council.  46 

(c) The mayor shall submit to the City Council, annually, on a date the mayor deems 47 

appropriate, a three-year Capital Improvement Program.  The first-year of the 48 

program shall constitute the Capital Improvement Budget and shall be part of the 49 

annual budget submission provided for in that year’s operating budget. 50 

(d) The General Fund and Capital Projects Fund shall be funded annually by 1.8% of 51 

annual sales tax collected. 52 

 53 

4.04.040 General Fund Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund  54 

(a) A Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund is hereby created to receive funds 55 

designated for vehicle and heavy equipment replacement. 56 

(b) All Funds appropriated to the Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund shall 57 

remain in the Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund only to be expended on 58 

new vehicle and heavy equipment purchases as approved by the City Council.   59 

(c) Proceeds from the sale of vehicles and heavy equipment, excluding sales of 60 

vehicles and heavy equipment owned by the water and sewer enterprise fund shall 61 

be deposited into the Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund.   62 

(d) The mayor shall submit to the City Council, annually, on a date the mayor deems 63 

appropriate, a three-year Vehicle Replacement Program. The first-year of the 64 

program shall constitute the Vehicle Replacement Budget and shall be part of the 65 

annual budget submission provided for in that given year’s operating budget. 66 

(e) The Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund shall be funded by 2.9% of annual 67 

sales tax collected. 68 

4.04.050 Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund  69 

(a) A Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund is hereby created to receive funds 70 

designated for Utility Department vehicle and heavy equipment replacement. 71 

(b) All Funds appropriated to the Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment 72 

Fleet Fund shall remain in the Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment 73 

Fleet Fund only to be expended on new vehicle and heavy equipment purchases 74 

as approved by the City Council.   75 

(c) Proceeds from the sale of vehicles and heavy equipment from the Utility 76 

Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund shall be deposited into the 77 

Utility Department Vehicle and Heavy Equipment Fleet Fund.   78 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: April 1, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  April 15, 2013 

3 

 

(d) The mayor shall submit to the City Council, annually, on a date the mayor deems 79 

appropriate, a three-year Utility Department Vehicle Replacement Program. The 80 

first-year of the program shall constitute the Vehicle Replacement Budget and 81 

shall be part of the annual budget submission provided for in that given year’s 82 

operating budget. 83 

 84 

            Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective July 1, 2013. 85 

 86 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 87 

Council this 15th day of April, 2013. 88 

 89 

 90 

 91 

______________________________ 92 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 93 

 94 

 95 

 96 

 97 

ATTEST: 98 

 99 

 100 

____________________________________ 101 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 102 

North Pole City Clerk 103 

 104 

 105 

 106 

 107 

PASSED/FAILED 108 

YES: 109 

NO: 110 

ABSENT: 111 




























	AG-04-15-13
	Min-04-01-13
	Proclamation-Kayla Heinrichs
	US Army Corps of Engineers & CNP Law Enforcement Agreement
	Ord 13-04 Amend Sales Tax
	Ord 13-05 Amend Title 4-Revenue and Finance -Fiscal Year
	Ord 13-06 Amending Title 2 Chptr 2.36 Pay-of the Personnel Code

